### MID BEDFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

At a meeting of the **REGULATION COMMITTEE** held at Council Chamber, Priory House, Chicksands, Shefford on Wednesday, 4 March 2009.

### **PRESENT**

Cllr J H Lewis (Chairman) Cllr L Birt (Vice-Chairman)

Cllrs P A Blaine Cllrs Mrs J G Lawrence

I Dalgarno H J Lockey
Mrs J R Davison K D Lynch
M J Gibson Mrs C Turner

Apologies for Absence: Cllrs A R Baines

Substitutes: Cllrs S A Mitchell (In place of A R Baines)

Members in Attendance: Cllrs A A J Rogers

Officers in Attendance: Miss H Bell – Committee Administrator

Mr P Jones – Licensing Manager

Mr M Woolsey – Solicitor

#### REG/08/42 MINUTES

### **RESOLVED**

that the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2009 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

## REG/08/43 ADDITIONAL ITEM OF BUSINESS

By virtue of the Authority vested in him, in accordance with Section 100(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Chairman agreed to allow an additional item of business to be considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

This item related to the making of a decision on the action required with regard to Private Hire Driver's Licence No. 745 for Mr K Raggett, which would not admit delay to the next scheduled meeting of the Regulation Committee and therefore needed to be considered as a matter of urgency.

A copy of the report (R10) was circulated at the meeting.

### REG/08/44 **MEMBERS' INTERESTS**

## (a) Personal Interests:-

Member	Item	Nature of Interest	Present or Absent during discussion
Cllr K D Lynch	R10 (Additional Item of Business)	Knows driver in a personal capacity.	Absent
Cllr P A Blaine	R10 (Additional Item of Business)	Lives in close vicinity to driver.	Absent

## (b) Personal and Prejudicial Interests:-

None.

## REG/08/45 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

No applications had been received in accordance with the Scheme of Public Participation set out in Appendix "A" referred to in Procedure Rule No. CM9.

# REG/08/46 APPLICATION FOR A NEW HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE IN RESPECT OF MR A MAJID OF LUTON

The Committee received and considered the report of the Director of Corporate and Democratic Services concerning an application for a new Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence in respect of Mr A Majid of Luton.

A copy of the application form and supporting documents were attached as an appendix for Members information. The Applicant attended the meeting and made representations in support of the application.

In accordance with the procedures for hearings held in private the Applicant and Licensing Officer were asked to withdraw whilst the Committee made their decision, following which all who had withdrawn were recalled to hear the decision.

### **RESOLVED**

- 1. that the application for a new Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence in respect of Mr A Majid of Luton be refused in this case under Paragraph 59 of the Local Government Act 1976 as the Committee did not consider the Applicant to be a "fit and proper" person to hold such a licence on the information provided during the meeting.
- 2. that the Applicant be informed in writing of his right to appeal against this decision to the Magistrates Court and that the appeal must be made within 21 days of written notification of this decision.

## REG/08/47 APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE IN RESPECT OF MR A KAMRAN OF LUTON

The Committee received and considered the report of the Director of Corporate and Democratic Services concerning an application for renewal of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence No. 425 in respect of Mr M Kamran of Luton.

A copy of the application form and supporting documents were attached as an appendix for Members information.

### RESOLVED

that the application for renewal of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence for Mr M Kamran of Luton be postponed due to the failure to attend the hearing.

The matter be postponed until the next meeting of the Regulation Committee on 6 May 2009.

## REG/08/48 APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE IN RESPECT OF MR K S JOHNSTONE OF SHEFFORD

The Committee received and considered the report of the Director of Corporate and Democratic Services concerning an application for renewal of a Private Hire Driver's Licence in respect of Mr K S Johnstone of Shefford.

A copy of the application form and supporting documents were attached as an appendix for Members information. The Applicant attended the meeting and made representations in support of the application.

In accordance with the procedures for hearings held in private the Applicant and Licensing Officer were asked to withdraw whilst the Committee made their decision, following which all who had withdrawn were recalled to hear the decision.

### **RESOLVED**

that the application for renewal of a Private Hire Driver's Licence for Mr K S Johnstone of Shefford be granted in this case subject to the Applicant being reminded of his responsibilities to comply with the conditions of the Licence and that the Council has the powers under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to revoke the Licence at any time and that any further convictions could be viewed extremely seriously.

# REG/08/49 APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE IN RESPECT OF MR J TYRELL OF SANDY

The Committee received and considered the report of the Director of Corporate and Democratic Services concerning an application for renewal of a Private Hire Driver's Licence No. 711 in respect of Mr J Tyrell of Sandy.

A copy of the application form and supporting documents were attached as an appendix for Members information. The Applicant attended the meeting and made representations in support of the application.

In accordance with the procedures for hearings held in private the Applicant and Licensing Officer were asked to withdraw whilst the Committee made their decision, following which all who had withdrawn were recalled to hear the decision.

### **RESOLVED**

that the application for renewal of a Private Hire Driver's Licence No. 711 for Mr J Tyrell of Sandy be granted in this case subject to the Applicant being reminded of his responsibilities to comply with the conditions of the Licence and that the Council has the powers under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to revoke the Licence at any time and that any further convictions could be viewed extremely seriously.

# REG/08/50 APPLICATION FOR A NEW PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE IN RESPECT OF MR B KINGSLEY OF ARLESEY

The Committee received and considered the report of the Director of Corporate and Democratic Services concerning an application for a new Private Hire Driver's Licence in respect of Mr B Kingsley of Arlesey.

A copy of the application form and supporting documents were attached as an appendix for Members information. The Applicant attended the meeting and made representations in support of the application.

In accordance with the procedures for hearings held in private the Applicant and Licensing Officer were asked to withdraw whilst the Committee made their decision, following which all who had withdrawn were recalled to hear the decision.

### RESOLVED

that the application for a new Private Hire Driver's Licence for Mr B Kingsley of Arlesey be granted in this case subject to the Applicant being reminded of his responsibilities to comply with the conditions of the Licence and that the Council has the powers under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to revoke the Licence at any time and that any further convictions could be viewed extremely seriously.

### REG/08/51 ADDITIONAL ITEM OF BUSINESS

By virtue of the authority vested in accordance with Section 100(b) (4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Chairman authorised consideration of the making of a decision on the action required with regard to Private Hire Driver's Licence No. 745 for Mr K Raggett.

A copy of the report was circulated at the meeting.

### **RESOLVED**

- 1. that Private Hire Driver's Licence No. 745 be suspended with immediate effect and that Mr K Raggett be invited to provide clarification at the next meeting of the Regulation Committee on 6 May 2009.
- 2. that the Applicant be informed in writing of his right to appeal against this decision to the Magistrates Court and that the appeal must be made within 21 days of written notification of this decision.

(Note: The meeting commenced at 9.30 a.m. and concluded at 11.30 a.m.)

